
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible.

AB
STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 19 OCTOBER 2016
7.00 PM

Council Chamber - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Request for Call in of an Executive Decision: Lease with Stef and 
Philips Limited for the use of St. Michael's Gate, Parnwell, as interim 
accommodation for homeless families -  SEPT16/CMDN/62

3 - 16

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use
%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385

Committee Members:

Councillors: S Allen (Chairman), J Bull (Vice Chairman), R Bisby, D King, S Martin, A Ali and 
A Shaheed

Substitutes: Councillors: L Serluca, M Hussain and A Bond

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No.  3

19 OCTOBER 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – (01733) 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

REQUEST FOR CALL IN OF AN EXECUTIVE DECISION: LEASE WITH STEF 
AND PHILIPS LIMITED FOR THE USE OF ST. MICHAEL'S GATE, PARNWELL, 
AS INTERIM ACCOMMODATION FOR HOMELESS FAMILIES - 
SEPT16/CMDN/62

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To consider a request to call-in an Executive Decision made by the Cabinet Member for Resources on 
30 September 2016.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Strong and Supportive Communities  Scrutiny Committee considers a request to call-in a 
decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Resources in respect of the lease with Stef and Philips 
Limited for the use of St. Michael's Gate, Parnwell, as interim accommodation for homeless families.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 On 30 September 2016, the Cabinet Member for Resources made an executive decision relating to 
the lease with Stef and Philips Limited for the use of St. Michael's Gate, Parnwell, as interim 
accommodation for homeless families. In accordance with the Constitution this decision was published 
on 30 September 2016

3.2 On 5 October 2016, Councillor Darren Fower supported by Councillor Sandford and Councillor 
Davidson submitted a request to call-in this decision on the following grounds:

Criteria 4.      The decision does not follow the principles of good decision making set out in Article 11   
of the  Council’s Constitution, specifically that the decision maker did not:

(a) Realistically consider all alternatives and, where reasonably possible, consider the 
views of the public.

     (c)    Take account of all relevant matters, both in general and specific, and ignore 
any irrelevant matters.

     (d)      Act for proper purpose and in the interest of the public.
     (h)      Be responsible for their decisions and be prepared to give reasons for them.

3.3 A copy of the request to call-in is attached at Appendix 1, a copy of the report considered by the 
Cabinet Member for Resources is attached at Appendix 2 and copy of the decision notice is attached 
at Appendix 3.

3.4 After considering the request to call-in and all relevant advice, the Committee may either:

(a) not agree to the request to call-in, when the decision shall take effect immediately;
(b) refer the decision back to the decision maker for reconsideration, setting out its 

concerns; or
(c) refer the matter to Full Council.

3



4. IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Any implications are contained within the report to the Cabinet Member for Resources at Appendix 2.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Request to Call-In Decision
Appendix 2 – Report Considered by the  Cabinet Member for Resources
Appendix 3 -    Copy of Decision Notice – SEPT16/CMDN/62

4



Appendix 1

CALL-IN REQUEST FORM AB
This form must be completed and signed by at least TWO members of any Scrutiny 
Commission or Scrutiny Committee and MUST be returned to the *Proper Officer within 3 
working days of the decision being published (not including the day of publication).  Please 
telephone the Proper Officer to make them aware that the Call-In form is on its way.

*Please note that the Proper Officer can be any of the following Senior Democratic Services Officer: 
Paulina Ford, Tel: 452508 or Senior Democratic Services Officer: Philippa Turvey Tel 452460.  The 
Call-In Request will only be valid if it has been received in person by any of the above people within 
the 3 working day deadline.  The form may be emailed or hand delivered.  If sent in the post you must 
call the Proper Officer to advise that it has been posted and it will need to be received by the Proper 
Officer within the 3 working day deadline.
Decision taker: Councillor Seaton

Date of publication of decision: 30 September 2016

Title of Decision Called in : Lease with Stef and Philips Limited for the use of St. 
Michael’s Gate, Parnwell, as interim accommodation 
for homeless families SEPT16/CMDN/62

Date Decision Called in: 5 October 2016

REASONS FOR CALL-IN Tick which reason 
applies

1. Decision contrary to the policy framework?

2. Decision contrary or not wholly consistent with the budget?

3. Decision is Key but it has not been dealt with in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 

4. Decision does not follow principles of good decision-making set out in 
Article 11 of the Council’s Constitution.

x

If reason 4, please tick which specific element of Article 11 the decision maker has not 
followed, did he or she not:
(a) Realistically consider all alternatives and, where reasonably 

possible, consider the views of the public.
x

(b) Understand and keep to the legal requirements regulating their 
power to make decisions

(c) Take account of all relevant matters, both in general and 
specific, and ignore any irrelevant matters.

x

(d) Act for a proper purpose and in the interests of the public. x
(e) Keep to the rules relating to local government finance.
(f) Follow procedures correctly and be fair.
(g) Make sure they are properly authorised to make the decisions.
(h) Be responsible for their decisions and be prepared to give 

reasons for them.
x

(i) Take appropriate professional advice from officers.

5



Appendix 1

Detailed Reason(s) for Call-in.  Please explain below why one of the reasons for call-in applies 
(eg. For number 1 - which major policy affected and how/why)

74 Residents faced losing their homes as a result of a planned procedure, which involves 
Peterborough City Council and private (Stef and Philips Ltd) Landlords to evict tenants in order to 
then provide homeless people with temporary accommodation.

We the Liberal Democrats believe this is morally wrong on every level and not in keeping with the 
Peterborough City Council obligations of upholding due care to its wider community and 
demonstrating fairness to local tax payers.

Name (please print) Signature Date

1. Councillor Darren Fower Hard copy presented 5 Oct 2016

2. Councillor Nick Sandford Via email 5 Oct 2016

3. Councillor Julia Davidson Hard copy presented 5 Oct 2016

6



APPENDIX 2

Report Author:  Ray Murphy
Tel: 01733 864052  

Lease with Stef and Philips Limited for the use of St. Michael’s Gate, Parnwell, as interim 
accommodation for homeless families
Councillor David Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources

September 2016

Deadline date: September 2016

Cabinet portfolio holder:
Responsible Director:

Councillor David Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources 
Wendi Ogle-Welbourn – Corporate Director for People and 
Communities
Simon Machen - Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration

Is this a Key Decision? YES
If yes has it been included on the Forward Plan : No
Urgency Provisions Invoked

Is this decision eligible for call-in? Yes
Does this Public report have any 
annex that contains exempt 
information?

No

Is this a project and if so has it 
been registered on Verto?

NO
Verto number: N/A

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
The Cabinet Member for Resources is recommended to: 

1. Give approval for the Council to enter into a three year lease with a break clause at the end 
of the second year, with Stef and Philips regarding the use of St Michael’s Gate, Parnwell as 
interim accommodation for homeless families at a £966,337 per annum and a total cost of up 
to £2,899,011 for a three year period. 

  

1. SUMMARY OF MAIN ISSUES

1.1 This report seeks approval of the Cabinet Member for Resources to enter into a lease for 
the duration of three years with the option to break at the end of year two, with Stef and 
Philips Limited for land at St Michael’s Gate, Parnwell, as interim accommodation for 
homeless families.

2. PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

2.1 This report is for the Cabinet Member for Resources to consider exercising delegated 
authority under paragraph 3.4.8 (a) of Part 3 of the Constitution in accordance with the terms 
of their portfolio at paragraph (j).

2.2 Urgency and Special Urgency Provision have been envoked in relation to waiving both the 
requirement to publish a key decision on the forward plan and to waive the 5 clear days 
before the decision can be taken. This is on the basis of securing the lease with Stef and 

 AB

7



Philips and preventing the risk of a different local authority accessing the properties at St 
Michael’s Gate.

3. TIMESCALE 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting

N/A

4. DETAILS OF DECISION REQUIRED 

4.1 To enter into a lease with Stef and Philips for the provision of interim accommodation for a 
period three years with the option for the Council to terminate the lease at the end of the 
second year. The accommodation is located at St Michael’s Gate, Parnwell. 

4.2 The Council will take a lease with vacant possession from Stef and Philips in respect of their 
freehold land at St Michael’s Gate. The Council will subsequently grant interim tenancy 
agreements to individual occupiers but the properties will be managed by Stef and Philips 
under the terms of the lease

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 Consultation has taken place with legal services, housing needs, the Safer Peterborough 
Partnership, ward councillors and the Parnwell Residence Association. 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES

6.1 Approve the grant of a lease from Stef and Philips Limited as detailed in the 
‘Recommendation’ above.  

7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS & ANY RELEVANT BACKGROUND 
INFORMATION  

7.1 There has been an increase in the use of temporary accommodation which is used to meet 
the Council’s statutory duties towards homeless households. Aside from the impacts on 
households, the most significant financial impact is caused by the amount we are able to 
reclaim via Housing Benefit Subsidy when non self-contained (i.e. bed and breakfast) 
accommodation is used; typically B&B accommodation costs the Council c.£480 per week 
per room but the amount reclaimable is just c.£92 per week (capped at the Local Housing 
Allowance 1-bedroom rate). 

7.2 The council finds itself in this position for a number of reasons, most notably the sharp decline 
in available affordable or social housing of the correct size coupled with the full impacts of 
welfare reform (typically the spare room subsidy, benefit cap and the start of Universal Credit 
rollout in Peterborough). We have managed homelessness well in Peterborough over many 
years whilst local authorities elsewhere have continued to struggle to control impacts and 
costs, but Peterborough too is now catching up with other areas. The following chart shows 
the number of people in temporary accommodation, including a sharp increase from April 
2016. 

8



7.3 The current full year forecast is a pressure of £1.444m. Based on levels of usage of non-self-
contained accommodation remaining static the forecast full year impact for 2017/18 is 
anticipated to be £1.965m. However, there are further changes being made to welfare 
benefits that could negatively impact on this position:

● a reduction to the existing housing benefit cap due at the end of November, further 
impacting the difference between the subsidy rate and the current non self-contained 
accommodation rate paid by the council

● the continued roll-out of Universal Credit impacting the way housing benefit is 
received (direct to the tenant rather than to the landlord further increasing the risk of 
non-payment of rent)

7.4 It is not viable for the council to continue to operate in this way and consideration has to be 
given to alternative methods of sourcing interim accommodation for homeless people in 
Peterborough. 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 Option 1 - Do nothing 

The current position is unviable and puts the council under increasing financial pressure, this 
option has therefore been discounted. 

8.2 Option 2 - Do not use St. Michael’s Gate

If we decide not to enter into a lease with Stef and Philips they will still seek vacant possession 
of all 74 units and these will then be offered to other local authorities from London Boroughs 
to accommodate their own homeless households.  The impact of a large number of 
households from outside the city being accommodated in Peterborough is likely to add 
significant pressure on to public resources, this option has therefore been discounted as it 
will increase the existing pressures on services. 

8.3 Option 3 - Develop alternative interim accommodation 

Consideration is being given to option to developing our own interim accommodation, this 
will be a much longer lead in time and will not be able to support the immediate temporary 
accommodation need. 

9



8.4 Option 4 - Commit to a longer term Lease with Stef and Philips Limited

Consideration was given to a longer term arrangement for St Michaels Gate, however it is 
anticipated that alternative options around interim accommodation, as per option will be in 
place by year 3, therefore it is not necessary to enter into a longer term lease at this stage.  

9. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

9.1 The nightly rates proposed by Stef and Philips are significantly lower than the costs being 
incurred by the Council for non-self-contained accommodation:

Accommodation 
type

Nightly 
rate

Number of 
units

Total annual 
cost

HMO/1 Bed flat £18.50 40 £270,100

2 bedroom House £22.50 6 £49,275

3 Bedroom House £32.50 41 £486,362

4 Bedroom House £40.00 11 £160,600

Totals 98* £966,337

    *The total number of properties is currently 74, however this number will be increased to 98 by Stef and Philips, who 
will convert a number of properties into HMOs.  

9.2 Additionally, the Housing Benefit Subsidy the Council can reclaim if we use self-contained 
temporary accommodation is more generous and would reduce the forecast overspend 
significantly. The table below shows the costs of B&B accommodation compared to the Stef 
and Philips offer and the levels of subsidy the council could claim over the period of a full 
year.  

Bedroom 
Need

Number 
of 
house-
holds

B&B costs HB 
subsidy 
level

Net costs Stef and 
Philips 
Costs

HB 
subsidy 
level

Net Costs Saving for 
the council 

HMO/1 
bedroom

40 £988,400 £192,005 £796,395 £270,100 £270,100 £0 £796,395

2 bedroom 6 £149,760 £28,801 £120,959 £49,275 £49,275 £0 £120,959

3 
Bedroom 

41 £1,023,360 £196,805 £826,555 £486,362 £391.393 £109,464 
(inc 
£14,495 
void)

£717,091

4 
Bedroom

11 £274,560 £52,801 £221,759 £160,600 £128,763 £46,332 
(inc 
£14,495 
void)

175,427

10



Bedroom 
Need

Number 
of 
house-
holds

B&B costs HB 
subsidy 
level

Net costs Stef and 
Philips 
Costs

HB 
subsidy 
level

Net Costs Saving for 
the council 

Voids 3% 28,990 0 28,990 28,990 0 £28,990 
(cost for 

illustration 
only, not 

part of 
totals)

£0

Totals 98 £2,436,080 £470,412 £1,965,668 £966,337 £839,531 £155,796 £1,809872

N.B. The table above assumes that all of the accommodation units are fully occupied bar 
turnover which will account for approximately 3% void costs throughout the year which is 
offset against 3 and 4 bedroom need equally.  There is a risk that if homelessness numbers 
fall, the assumed 3% void costs could be higher as the Council would be paying for 
accommodation that is not utilised and therefore Housing Benefit could not be claimed.  
However, current trends suggest this risk is low  

9.4 There will be an initial cost to the council of stamp duty land tax of around £30,987

9.5 The cost of using St Michael’s Gate includes additional services provided by the Landlord, 
Stef and Philips Limited. They will commit to a refurbishment where necessary so that units 
are in a good standard, as they become vacant at no additional cost to the council. The 
landlord will also provide the council with property management service delivered by an 
onsite caretaker and supported by the back office staff.   

Legal Implications

9.6 This type of arrangement would be exempt from the Public Contract Regulations (Reg 10(1) 
refers to acquisition or rental of land/existing buildings being exempt from the Regs). 

9.7 The Council will be granting tenancy agreements and will become landlord to the individual 
tenants.  The agreement with Stef and Philips will pass on the responsibility for this to them.  
The agreements will be for interim accommodation so will not create secure council 
tenancies

Equalities Implications

9.8 This decision and its implementation must adhere to equality and Human rights legislation 
under the relevant Acts.

10. DECLARATIONS / CONFLICTS OF INTEREST & DISPENSATIONS GRANTED

10.1 None.

11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985) and The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012

 
None.

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



Appendix 3

Decision details

Lease with Stef and Philips Limited for the use of St. Michael's Gate, Parnwell, as interim 

accommodation for homeless families SEPT16/CMDN/62

 Find out more about this issue

Decision Maker: Cabinet Member for Resources

Decision status: Item Called In

Is Key decision?: Yes

Is subject to call in?: Yes

Purpose:

Special Urgency Provision
 

The decision is not included in the current Forward Plan and cannot wait until the 
publication of the next Forward Plan, on the basis of securing the lease with Stef and 
Philips and preventing the risk of a different local authority accessing the properties at St 
Michaels Gate.
 
This report has been shared with the Head of Governance and Chair of Sustainable 
Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee.
 
The five clear working day consideration period should not apply to this decision, on the 
basis of securing the lease with Stef and Philips and preventing the risk of a different local 
authority accessing the properties at St Michaels Gate.
 
This report has been shared with the Head of Governance and the Chair of Sustainable 
Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee has agreed to waive the 
consideration period.

 
The Cabinet Member for Resources approved the Council to enter into a three year lease 
with a break clause at the end of the second year, with Stef and Philips regarding the use of 
St Michael’s Gate, Parnwell as interim accommodation for homeless families at a £966,337 
per annum and a total cost of up to £2,899,011 for a three year period.
 

13

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=18652&Opt=0


Appendix 3

Reasons for the decision:

There has been an increase in the use of temporary accommodation which is used to meet 
the Council’s statutory duties towards homeless households. Aside from the impacts on 
households, the most significant financial impact is caused by the amount we are able to 
reclaim via Housing Benefit Subsidy when non self-contained (i.e. bed and breakfast) 
accommodation is used; typically B&B accommodation costs the Council c.£480 per week 
per room but the amount reclaimable is just c.£92 per week (capped at the Local Housing 
Allowance 1-bedroom rate).
 
The council finds itself in this position for a number of reasons, most notably the sharp 
decline in available affordable or social housing of the correct size coupled with the full 
impacts of welfare reform (typically the spare room subsidy, benefit cap and the start of 
Universal Credit rollout in Peterborough). We have managed homelessness well in 
Peterborough over many years whilst local authorities elsewhere have continued to struggle 
to control impacts and costs, but Peterborough too is now catching up with other areas. The 
following chart shows the number of people in temporary accommodation, including a 
sharp increase from April 2016.

 

 

The current full year forecast is a pressure of £1.444m. Based on levels of usage of non-
self-contained accommodation remaining static the forecast full year impact for 2017/18 is 
anticipated to be £1.965m. However, there are further changes being made to welfare 
benefits that could negatively impact on this position:

         a reduction to the existing housing benefit cap due at the end of November, further 

impacting the difference between the subsidy rate and the current non self-contained 

accommodation rate paid by the council

14



Appendix 3

         the continued roll-out of Universal Credit impacting the way housing benefit is received 

(direct to the tenant rather than to the landlord further increasing the risk of non-

payment of rent)

 
It is not viable for the council to continue to operate in this way and consideration has to be 
given to alternative methods of sourcing interim accommodation for homeless people in 
Peterborough.

 

Alternative options considered:

Option 1 - Do nothing
 

The current position is unviable and puts the council under increasing financial pressure, this 
option has therefore been discounted.

 
Option 2 - Do not use St. Michael’s Gate

           
If we decide not to enter into a lease with Stef and Philips they will still seek vacant 
possession of all 74 units and these will then be offered to other local authorities from 
London Boroughs to accommodate their own homeless households.  The impact of a large 
number of households from outside the city being accommodated in Peterborough is likely to 
add significant pressure on to public resources, this option has therefore been discounted as it 
will increase the existing pressures on services.

 
Option 3 - Develop alternative interim accommodation

 
Consideration is being given to option to developing our own interim accommodation, this 
will be a much longer lead in time and will not be able to support the immediate temporary 
accommodation need.

 
Option 4 - Commit to a longer term Lease with Stef and Philips Limited

Consideration was given to a longer term arrangement for St Michaels Gate, however it is 
anticipated that alternative options around interim accommodation, as per option will be in 
place by year 3, therefore it is not necessary to enter into a longer term lease at this stage. 

Interests and Nature of Interests Declared:

None.

Background Documents:

15



Appendix 3

None.

Urgent item?: Yes

Publication date: 30/09/2016

Date of decision: 30/09/2016

Issue status: The decision is currently being reconsidered

This decision has been called in by: 

 Councillor Darren Fower who writes Call in supported by Councillor Sandford and Councillor 

Davidson Criteria 4: Decision does not follow principles of good decision-making set out in 

Article 11 of the Council’s Constitution. That the decision maker has not followed: a - 

Realistically consider all alternatives and, where reasonably possible, consider the views of the 

public. c - Take account of all relevant matters, both in general and specific, and ignore any 

irrelevant matters. d - Act for a proper purpose and in the interests of the public. h - Be 

responsible for their decisions and be prepared to give reasons for them." 

Accompanying Documents:

 CMDN - St Michaels Gate - PUB PDF 122 KB 

16

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=137
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s28880/CMDN%20-%20St%20Michaels%20Gate%20-%20PUB.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s28880/CMDN%20-%20St%20Michaels%20Gate%20-%20PUB.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s28880/CMDN%20-%20St%20Michaels%20Gate%20-%20PUB.pdf

	Agenda
	3 Request for Call in of an Executive Decision: Lease with Stef and Philips Limited for the use of St. Michael's Gate, Parnwell, as interim accommodation for homeless families -  SEPT16/CMDN/62
	3. Appendix 1 - Call In Request Formv1
	3. Appendix 2 - CMDN - St Michaels Gate - PUBv
	3, Appendix 3 - Decision Notice Word Doc


